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may file a comment through that Web 
site. 

If you file your comment on paper, 
write ‘‘Universal Health Services, File 
No. 121 0157’’ on your comment and on 
the envelope, and mail or deliver it to 
the following address: Federal Trade 
Commission, Office of the Secretary, 
Room H–113 (Annex D), 600 
Pennsylvania Avenue NW., Washington, 
DC 20580. If possible, submit your 
paper comment to the Commission by 
courier or overnight service. 

Visit the Commission Web site at 
http://www.ftc.gov to read this Notice 
and the news release describing it. The 
FTC Act and other laws that the 
Commission administers permit the 
collection of public comments to 
consider and use in this proceeding as 
appropriate. The Commission will 
consider all timely and responsive 
public comments that it receives on or 
before November 7, 2012. You can find 
more information, including routine 
uses permitted by the Privacy Act, in 
the Commission’s privacy policy, at 
http://www.ftc.gov/ftc/privacy.htm. 

Analysis of Agreement Containing 
Consent Order To Aid Public Comment 

I. Introduction and Background 

The Federal Trade Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) has accepted for public 
comment, subject to final approval, an 
Agreement Containing Consent Orders 
(‘‘Consent Agreement’’) from Alan B. 
Miller and Universal Health Services, 
Inc. (collectively, ‘‘UHS’’). The purpose 
of the proposed Consent Agreement is to 
remedy the anticompetitive effects that 
otherwise would result from the merger 
of UHS with Ascend Health Corporation 
(‘‘Ascend’’). Under the terms of the 
proposed Consent Agreement, UHS is 
required to divest, within six months 
after the Decision and Order is issued, 
its Peak Behavioral Health Services 
facility (‘‘Peak’’), and all relevant assets 
and real property in the local market 
encompassing El Paso, Texas and its 
suburb, Santa Teresa, New Mexico (‘‘El 
Paso/Santa Teresa’’), to an acquirer that 
receives the approval of the 
Commission. UHS will acquire 
University Behavioral Health of El Paso, 
the Ascend facility, when the merger 
closes. To ensure that the divested 
assets attract a buyer that can 
adequately compete with UHS post- 
divestiture, the Consent Agreement 
requires a second UHS hospital, Mesilla 
Valley Hospital (‘‘Mesilla Valley’’), 
located in Las Cruces, New Mexico, to 
be divested if the original divestiture 
assets are not sold to an approved buyer 
within the six-month timeframe. UHS 
and Ascend have also agreed to hold the 

to-be-divested assets separate, and to 
maintain the economic viability, 
marketability, and competitiveness of 
both the Peak and Mesilla Valley assets 
until the potential acquirer is approved 
by the Commission and the divestiture 
is complete. 

The proposed Consent Agreement has 
been placed on the public record for 
thirty days to solicit comments from 
interested persons. Comments received 
during this period will become part of 
the public record. After thirty days, the 
Commission again will review the 
proposed Consent Agreement and 
comments received, and decide whether 
it should withdraw the Consent 
Agreement, modify the Consent 
Agreement, or make it final. 

On June 3, 2012, UHS agreed to 
acquire Ascend in a transaction valued 
at approximately $517 million. The 
Commission’s complaint alleges that the 
proposed acquisition, if consummated, 
would violate Section 7 of the Clayton 
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and 
Section 5 of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 
45, by removing an actual, direct, and 
substantial competitor from one local 
market for acute inpatient psychiatric 
services. The proposed Consent 
Agreement would remedy the alleged 
violations by requiring a complete 
divestiture in the affected market. The 
divestiture will replace the competition 
that otherwise would be lost in the El 
Paso/Santa Teresa market as a result of 
the proposed acquisition. 

II. The Parties 

UHS, headquartered in King of 
Prussia, Pennsylvania, owns or operates 
25 general acute care hospitals and 198 
behavioral health facilities located in 36 
states, Washington, DC, Puerto Rico, 
and the U.S. Virgin Islands. It is one of 
the largest hospital management 
companies in the United States, with 
2011 revenues totaling approximately 
$7.5 billion. In 2011, UHS’s 198 
behavioral health facilities generated 
approximately $3.4 billion in revenue 
(25% of total revenues) from nearly 
19,000 licensed beds and over 5 million 
patient days. The top revenue sources 
for its behavioral health centers are 
commercial payors (38% of 2011 net 
revenue), Medicaid (24%), and 
Medicare (17%). In November 2010, 
UHS completed its acquisition of 
Psychiatric Solutions, Inc., which had 
operated the nation’s largest network of 
freestanding inpatient behavioral health 
facilities, subject to an FTC consent 
order that required UHS to divest 
facilities in Nevada, Delaware, and 
Puerto Rico. 

Ascend, headquartered in New York, 
New York, owns or operates nine 
behavioral health facilities located in 
Arizona, Oregon, Texas, Utah, and 
Washington, including seven acute 
inpatient psychiatric hospitals, a 
substance abuse residential treatment 
center, and an addiction treatment 
center. 

III. Acute Inpatient Psychiatric Services 
UHS’s proposed acquisition of 

Ascend poses substantial antitrust 
concerns in the relevant product market 
of acute inpatient psychiatric services 
provided to commercially insured 
patients. Acute inpatient psychiatric 
services are those provided for the 
diagnosis, treatment, and care of 
patients deemed to be a threat to 
themselves or others or unable to 
perform basic life functions, due to an 
acute psychiatric condition. Acute 
inpatient psychiatric care is distinct 
from other psychiatric services such as 
partial hospitalization, intensive 
outpatient programs, outpatient care, 
and residential treatment. Other, less 
intensive, psychiatric services are not 
substitutes for acute inpatient 
psychiatric services. 

The acute inpatient psychiatric 
services market is local in nature. 
Analysis of patient flow data and 
evidence gathered from market 
participants indicate that patients and 
their families prefer to find care as close 
to home as possible and to stay within 
the city where they live or work. 
Accordingly, most residents of El Paso 
and Santa Teresa obtain acute inpatient 
psychiatric services from providers 
located in El Paso or Santa Teresa. 
Health plans also have internal 
guidelines or regulatory ‘‘geo-access’’ 
standards requiring that services be 
made available within a certain, usually 
short, distance from their members. The 
acute inpatient psychiatric services 
market affected by the proposed 
acquisition is thus limited to the El 
Paso/Santa Teresa market. 

The proposed acquisition would lead 
to a virtual monopoly in the provision 
of acute inpatient psychiatric services 
provided to commercially insured 
patients in the El Paso/Santa Teresa 
market, which creates a strong 
presumption that the acquisition would 
create or enhance market power or 
facilitate its exercise. The presumption 
of anticompetitive harm is further 
supported by evidence of the close 
competition between the UHS-ins in tvidrD
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